EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MINUTES

Committee:	Overview and Scrutiny Committee Date: Tuesday, 4 June 2019
Place:	Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Time: 7.30 - 8.38 pm High Street, Epping
Members Present:	Councillors M Sartin (Chairman) R Jennings (Vice-Chairman) R Baldwin, L Burrows, D Dorrell, S Heather, Y Knight, S Murray, S Neville, S Rackham, P Stalker, D Sunger, J H Whitehouse, D Wixley and R Morgan
Other Councillors:	Councillors S Kane, J Lea, J Leppert, C McCredie, J McIvor, A Patel, J Philip, S Stavrou, C Whitbread and H Whitbread
Apologies:	Councillors G Mohindra
Officers Present:	G Blakemore (Chief Executive), A Hendry (Senior Democratic Services Officer), S Kits (Social Media and Customer Services Officer), R Pavey (Service Director (Customer Services)), R Perrin (Democratic Services Officer) and S Tautz (Democratic Services Manager)

1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION

The Chairman reminded everyone present that the meeting would be broadcast live to the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the webcasting of its meetings.

2. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

It was reported that Councillor R Morgan was substituting for Councillor G Mohindra.

3. MINUTES

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the Committee meeting held on 16 April 2019 be signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

(a) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillor S Murray declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item 9 (Overview & Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2019/20) by virtue of being part of the Epping Forest Sixth-Form Consortium in his previous employment. Councillor S Murray advised that he would remain in the meeting for the consideration of this item.

(b) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillor D Dorrell declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item 9 (Overview & Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2019/20) by virtue of his son attending one of the schools within the Epping Forest Sixth-Form Consortium.

(c) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillor C Whitbread declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item 9 (Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Work Programme 2019/20) by virtue of being the Deputy Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care at Essex County Council.

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS & REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

It was noted that there were no public questions or requests to address the Committee.

6. EXECUTIVE DECISIONS - CALL-IN

It was noted that no executive decisions had been called-in for consideration at this meeting.

7. CORPORATE PRIORITIES 2019/20

The Leader gave a verbal report on the Corporate Priorities for 2019/20 (attached).

The Committee commented that although the Corporate Priorities for 2019/20 had been available in other documents, they would have liked a written copy of the Leader report, as it contained much more detail and would have enabled a better quality of scrutiny. The Leader advised that the Corporate Priorities were normally verbally reported to the Committee with an overview and general direction, which the Cabinet would be pursuing. The decisions would evolve, and many options would be considered for the benefit of the Council.

Further comments were raised concerning the Service Company & Development Company and what this decision would entail. The Leader advised that the Cabinet were considering all options to protect the Councils assets.

The Committee enquired whether the proceeding Cabinet's business could be considered by the Committee to enable discussions and concerns or resistance, if any, to be raised before the meeting. The Chief Executive advised this could be considered, although the Forward Plan of Key Decisions was included in every agenda of the Committee, which highlighted the Key Decisions or major projects for the forth coming year that the Cabinet would be taking.

RESOLVED:

(1) That the Committee noted the Corporate Priorities for 2019/20 attached at appendix 1 of these minutes.

8. OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20

The Committee considered its draft work programme for the coming year.

The Committee noted that scrutiny of the Transformation Programme was to be deleted from the work programme, as ongoing projects and programme activity would be monitored by the Stronger Council Select Committee.

The Committee was also asked to consider the Reserve Programme and whether it would like to move any items to the work programme for 2019/20. The Committee support items (4) Local High Streets – Viability and Regeneration and (5) Adult Social Care (Scrutiny of External Organisation) being moved to the main work programme.

AGREED: The Committee agreed to add these to the work programme for 2019/20.

The Committee considered the other items on the Reserve Programme. The Committee commented that item (1) Epping Forest Sixth-Forum Consortium should remain on the reserve programme and be reconsidered once the Epping Forest College had attended and item (3) Essex Police/Essex Fire & Rescue Service -Joint Governance, would remain on the work programme, although scrutiny would be carried out through the Stronger Communities Select Committee.

AGREED: The Committee agreed that the Reserve Programme for 2019/20.

9. OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY SELECT COMMITTEES - MEMBERSHIP 2019/20

The Chairman advised that the Committee had previously agreed the new Overview and Scrutiny framework at its meeting on 16 April 2019, which had been based on three new select committees, reflecting the themes of the Corporate Plan for 2018-2023; Stronger Council; Stronger Communities and Stronger Places.

The rules set out within Article 6 of the Council's Constitution required that the Committee determine the membership and work programme for the Select Committees for the new municipal year.

RESOLVED:

(1) That, each of the select committees comprise of 11 members for 2019-20;

(2) That, the appointment to the select committees for Stronger Council, Stronger Places and Stronger Communities as set out in Appendix 2 to these minutes be agreed; and

(3) That, the chairman and vice-chairman of each of the select committees for 2019/20 as set out in Appendix 2 to minutes be agreed.

10. OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY SELECT COMMITTEES - TERMS OF REFERENCE & WORK PROGRAMMES 2019/20

The Committee considered the Terms of Reference and Work Programmes for the Stronger Communities, Stronger Council and Stronger Places select committees for 2019/20 that had been agreed at the last meeting.

RESOLVED:

That the Terms of Reference and Work Programmes for the Stronger Council, Stronger Communities and Stronger Places select committees as set out in Appendix 3 for the municipal year 2019/20 be agreed.

11. FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS - REVIEW

The Committee reviewed the Cabinet's programme of Key Decisions for 2019-20.

Planning Services

Councillor S Murray advised the Planning Services Portfolio Holder that he would be asking question about the Key Decision for the Statement of Community Involvement, when it was determined by Cabinet. The Planning Services Portfolio Holder advised, that if the questions were put into writing beforehand, he would be able provide a detailed answer at the meeting.

Contract and Technical Services

Councillor R Jennings enquired whether a Task and Finish Panel could be set up around the Key Decision on the Waste Management Review. The Committee agreed to this suggestion and the Contract and Technical Services Portfolio Holder supported the request.

AGREED: That a Task and Finish Panel be set up to consider the Waste Management Review and a scoping exercise for the Panel be brought to the next meeting for consideration.

Councillor D Wixley asked whether the Council was considering recycling bins on the high streets of the District to increase the recycling rates and whether that would be considered by the Task and Finish Panel. The Chairman advised that the Task and Finish Panel would have to determine it's work programme and whether this type of item would be included. The Contract and Technical Services Portfolio Holder advised that he had been discussing these options with officers before and would continue.

Councillor J H Whitehouse enquired about a Task and Finish Panel for Air Pollution. The Democratic Services Manager advised that a written proposal for a Task and Finish Panel would be required, with some thought to the scope and timescale to the subject, as it was a broad topic.

Housing and Property Services

Councillor S Murray asked whether a detailed report would be made available for all members when the Key Decision regarding the Service Company & Development Company was made, and whether it would be about providing new rental income or possible transferring existing housing stock.

The Leader advised that the report would be submitted to a future Cabinet meeting and no further consideration had been given at this time.

The Chairman suggested that this item could benefit from a Task and Finish Panel in the forthcoming months and Councillor S Murray endorsed this idea.

Furthermore, Councillor S Murray enquired about a previous decision regarding the formation of an off-street parking area on land at Marlescroft Way, Loughton, for the provision of daytime parking for employees of the Council's depot at Oakwood Hill. The Leader advised that the Housing and Property Services Portfolio Holder had withdrawn the planning application and with the progression at Oakwood Hill depot and the Accommodation Strategy, the car parking requirements had been addressed by on-street parking permits.

12. FORMER OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY SELECT COMMITTEES - MINUTES OF MEETINGS

The Chairman advised that following the decision of the Committee to revise the existing overview and scrutiny select committee framework and reduce the number of select committees to three, based on the corporate priorities. The minutes of the final cycle of the previous select committees were required to be agreed by the Committee.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the final meetings of the Communities Select Committee (15 January 2019), the Governance Select Committee (26 March 2019), the Neighbourhoods Select Committee (19 March 2019) and the Resources Select Committee (2 April 2019) be agreed as a correct record.

CHAIRMAN